
TIMOTHY C. BUHL, P.E. 
35 Fire Lane 24 

 Auburn, NY 13021  

  (607) 423-1919    

 

May 10, 2022  

 

Mr. John Zepko, CPESC, CFM 

Planner/ Stormwater Management Officer 

Town of Lansing 

29 Auburn Road – NYS Rte. 34 

Lansing, NY 14882 

 

Re: Village Solars PDA Traffic Study Review 

 Warren Road, Lansing (T) Tompkins County NY     

 

Dear Mr. Zepko: 

 

This letter is to document that I have reviewed the original 2014 PDA Revised Traffic Impact Study 

prepare by Lawrence Fabbroni, P.E., with respect to the proposed Phase 7 buildout of 138 new 

dwelling units.  I have also reviewed the 2018 NYSDOT AADT counts for the Warren Road area 

and the more recent December 2021 ITCTC final traffic count data for the years 2019, 2020, and 

2021. The only count taken near the project on Warren Road was taken in 2018 near the intersection 

of Farrell Road with a combined total count of 4797.   

 

I can state categorically that the proposed Phase 7 completion will not have any detrimental traffic 

impacts, primarily due to the low level of service on Warren Road, the actual highway design, and 

the four entry driveway/roads serving the project.   Sight and stopping distances on the straight and 

nearly level Warren Road fronting the development are more than adequate. 

 

Of particular interest are the more recent ITCTC counts that show a 10-20% decrease in the AADT 

since 2018 for nearly all the roads in the north-central part of the Town.  While Warren Road was 

not listed in the ITCTC count, nearby Farrell Road showed a 21% drop in 2021, after virtually no 

change during the period of 2007-2018.  This significant drop is attributed to the Covid Pandemic 

lockdowns and the subsequent remote learning and working.   In short, fewer people were 

commuting to school and/or their jobs, which is likely to continue but to a lesser degree. 

 

Please refer to the tabular data attached to this letter for more details. 

 

Very truly yours, 

TIMOTHY C. BUHL, P.E. 

 

 

 

Timothy C. Buhl, P.E. 
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